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Date . 11 March 2023

Report of the Board of Directors of Umm Al Oaiwain General Investments

ny Fin Resul f Year d 31 2022

It pives me great pleasure on behalf of myself and on behalf of the Board of Directors to
welcome vou at the AGM and 1 am pleased to review a bnef of the performance of the
company during the year 2022 . This Report represents the Limm Al Qawamn Creneral
Investments Company’'s performance for the year 2022 . The company recorded a net
Profit of AED 49,479,595 during the year 2022 compared to a net Profit of AED 59,331,828
during the comparative penod of 2021 | summary of these results are as follows :

Particular Year ended Y nd
Dec. 312022 Dec. 312021
Net Profits from Investments 57.143.620 65,190,647
Administrative expense (4,738,361) (4,095484)
Other Income 4.370 8246
Finance Costs (2,930,034) (1,771,581}
Net profit for the period 49,479,595 59,331,828
Total assets 68%.914,233 828,531,356
Total Sharcholder's equity 59G.741.001 697,448,132

From the table above | it is clear that net profit earning from investments decreased to
AED 57,143,620 in the year 2022 , while it was AED 65,190,647 in the year 2021 recorded
a ( decrease of 12.34 % ) due to the negative difference in the revaluation of investments
at fair value through profits or losses .

The Decline in the value of assets and the subsequent decrease in sharcholder's equity { Land
revaluation reserve ) was a result of the revaluation of the company s land anf its classification
of investment properities and the decrease in the revaluation of investments at fair value

through profit or loss.
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It 1s to be noted that the Company 1s holding a trading portfolio through profit or
loss | Investments for Trade | amounting to AED 251905619 and Investment at fair

value through other comprehensive income amounting to AED. 218,773,167 with a total

amount AED 470,678,786 .

E[mﬂ nhﬂ E!g! .

The Board of Directors proposes the allocation and distribution of net profits for
the vear ended December 31,2022 as follows :

AED
Net Profit for the Year 2022 . 49 479 595
10% transterred 1o the legal reserve. (4,947, 960)
Net profit for the year afier deducting the reserve. 44, 531,635

Net retained earnings after distribution for the year ending 31Dec. 2021 30,297,475
In addition to loss realized during the year from the sale
of shares at fair value through other comprehensive income

Retained earnings balance available for dividend 74,829,110

Proposed cash dividened 6 % (21,780,000)
Bonus proposed for members of the Board of Directors. (1,350,000)
Retained earnings balance after the proposed distribution 51,699,110

Last but not least the Board of Directors is pleased to take this opportunity to extend
our deepest thanks and appreciation to HH Sheikh Saud bin Rashid Al Mualla,
Supreme Council Member and Ruler of the Emirate of Umm Al Quwam and His
Highness, the Crown Prince for their support and continuous sponsorship of the

company |
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Dr. Mariam Al Sewaidi da e daall gl piga 2 [ Bl

Head of Listed Companies Affairs Dept . 1 el
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange , Al

Abu Dhabi , United Arab Emirates adeally gl a5 dia

piadall dyadl Sl = i

Greetings , i .J.l.l_!.‘l.ghﬁ

Enclosed herewith with the Financial statements 2022 31 b dggtial Al ) il Gkl a5 3

report for year ended 31 Dec ,2022 and report of the
1 : i .
board of directors, auditor's report on review attach aplpd Jya Jlieaall Goditall sy BAY) Lalpes 5008 A Ay

with ; bolad gy il il
1) statement of Financial position as at 31 Dec, 2022, - 2022 s 31 A L ~"JJ_.n Sl e (1
i:tat:ﬂr;:ntni profit of loss for the year ended 31 2022 4 31*5- siall dadl ‘ﬂjl.:'f,.ﬁ”u'ﬂ {I
3} Statement of other Comprehensive Income for the - 2022 e 31 -.p!' dggiiall diall LLN sl chy (3
year ended 31 Dec., 2022, gt 31 8 il Dl Cppatbasall Bgin F iy @il s (4
4] 5tatement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity for . 2022
the year ended 31 Dec., 2022 , .

5) Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 + 2082 auap’ 31 g gl Atall Hp oD AR i (5
Dec.. 2022 C 2022 jpand 31 b dggiall il AL Clid g laliiag (B

&) notes to the financial statement for the vear
ended 31 Dec., 2022

Best R_Egarﬂs, FEEEEEALE Fli"w @&MM

plall ) = S aall pall s

Saoud Nasser Al Moalla - General Manager
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The Shareholders

Umm Al Qalwain General Investments Company
Fublic Sharehelding Company

Umm Al Qaiwain - United Arab Emirates
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying financia! statements of Umm Al Qaiwain Genaral Investmenis
Company (the "Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2022, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 1o the financial statemants, Including a summary of
significant accounting policies and ather explanatory notes,

In cwir epinion, the financial statermaents presant fairly, in all materal respects. the financial posion of
the Company as at December 31, 2022, #s finarcial parformance and its cash Aows for the year
then endad in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSa).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiling {ISAs). Our
responsibilities under these standards ara further described in the Auditor's responsbilities for the
audil of the financial statements section of our reporl We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) logether with the ethical requiremenis that are relevant 1o
our audit of the financial statements in United Arab Emirales and we have fuffiled our olher
respongibilities in accordance with these requirements. We balisve ihat the audil evidenca we hava
obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide & basis for our audil opinion.

Fey audit matters

Key audit matlers are those matters that, In our professional judgement, were of most significancs in
ow audit of the financial statéments of the current year, These mallers were addressed on the
context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whale and in forming our opinicn theraan, and
wa do nol provide @ separale opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described
betow to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our reporl.

Investmant proparty

The company owns a Land in Umm Al Qaiwain which ks reclassified 1o Invesminet property during
the year. The Investments propery is stated at fair value.

The Investmenls property has been considered as an impostant audil matter for its materialily and
the audit procedures as follows:

1} An evaluation was obtained from Umm Al Qamwain municipality,

2} The difference between the carmying value and the value after the revaluation has baan verifisd.
3}  The difference between the carrying valus of the property and its fair value has been trestad.

Rl Mddls Enwmt Shaviah Fownr, OMice 206, Al-frootn Biresl
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Valuation of investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

The company possesses investment in securities comprised of quoted and unguoted investment

carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!). The valuation of guoted

investments is arrived at by reference to the quoted bid prices in an active market while unguated

investments were valued based on less active parallel marke! prices,

Investmanis at fair value through other comprehansive Income (FVTOCI) are measured at fair valus

with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized In othes cormprehensive INcome

and accumulated in cumulative changes in fair value reserve.

We consider the above investments at fair value through ather comprehensive income (FYVTOCH) a

key matter due to the materiality of investments and inconsistency and fluctuation in quoted bid

prices in an active market and the following are the audit procedures that we performed:

* We obtanad the list of all quated investments carmed at FYTOCH and tested it for agcuracy.

= We varified the fair market values of all quoted investments with quated active bid prices in siock
exchangs in which they are listed.

= We varified changes in fair value reserve of investments carried at FYTOC! and accumutated in
the cumulative changes in fair value reserve.

= We also assessed the adequacy of the company's disclosures in the financial statements far the
re-measurement of quoted invastments carmed at FYTOCE and its related changes in fair valua,

+ The fair value of unguoted investments has bean verified and matched with prices derived from
parallal markeai.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the cther information. Other information consists of information
meiuded in the company's reporl of 2022, other than the financial statements and our audilors’
repor thereon. We cbiained the report of the Board of Directors, prior 1o the date of our audilors’
reporti.

Our opinion on the financial statements doss not cover the other information and wa do nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connectlon with our audt of the financial statemants, our respansibility is 1o resd and other
mformation identified above and, In doing s0, consider whether the other information i materially
inconsistent with the financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otharwise
appears 10 be materially misstated. If, based on work we have perfermed, we conchide that there
B a mateslal statemert of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management ia responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordanca with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopled in United Arab Emirates
and for guch Inlernal control as management delarmines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statemants that are free from material misstelameant, whather due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible Tor agsegsing the Company’'s
ability 10 continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless managemenl either intends (o liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic allemative but 1o do so.

The management is responsible for oversesing the Company's financlal reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a
whole are free from matedal misstatement, whather dus 1o fraud or eror, and o issue an audiors
report that includes our cpinicon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, b & not a
guaraniee that an audit conducted in eccordance with ISAs will always detect a material
rmissiatemeant when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo nfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
thesa financial siatemeants
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As par of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identfy and assess the risks of material misstaterent of the financial statements, whether due
o fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obiain
awdit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our apinion, The risk of
not detecting & material missistement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misreprasentations, or the
override of Intemal confrol.

* Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant (o the audit in order 1o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances, but not for the purposa of BXpressing an
epinicn on the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal contral.

*  Evaluate the approprisfeness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of BoCoUNENg
estimates and related disclosuras made by management.

= Conclude on the approprialeness of managemeni's use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability o
continue as a going concern. If wa conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required
3 drany attention in our auditor's report i the related disclosures in the financlal statements or,
it such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusiens are based on the
audil evidence obtained up lo the dale of our auditor's reporl. However, future events or
conditions may causa the Company to cease to continue a& a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall preseniation, structure and content of the financial statements, inciuding
tha disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evenis in a manner that achisves fair presentation

We communicate with the managemani regarding, among olher matters, the plannad scope and iimng
of the audil and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in internal control thal we
identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by UAE Federal Law Mo (32) of 2021 we report that:

1. ¥e have cbtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for our audit.

2. The financial statements comply, in all material respact with the applicable provieions of UAE
Federal Law Nao. (32) of 2021 and the Aricles of Association of the Company.

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

The financial information included in the Directors' report is consistent with the books of account
of the Company.

Transactions and term with related parties disclosed In Nota 22

Irvestments and shares purchased by the Company dunng the cumant year disclosad In Note B,
The Social Contribution made during the year disclosed in Maote 23,

Bazed on the Information and explanstion that has been made available to us nothing came Lo
our gttention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial
year andad December 31, 2022 any of the applicable provisions of UAE Federal Law Neo. (32)
of 2021 or the Articles of Association of the Company which would have a material effect on the
Company's activities or an ita financial position for the year,
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UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.5.C.

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
LM AL QANMAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

LAl amewnts are in UAE. Dirham}

Exhibif - A

ASSETS
Non-curmnt assets

Imvrestment property
Immestments at fair value threugh ather

Comprahansive ncoms [FVTOC)
Total nor-current assets

Current assets

Invaatments at fair value lhrough profit oF loss
[FWVTPL)

ancounts and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalent

Tatal cumrant assats
Total assels

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ squity

Share capital

Legal reserve

Invesiments revaluation reserve-FYTOC
Lands revaluation reasres

Rataines sarmings

Total sharshokdars” aquity

Man-current liabilities
Proviaion for indenanlby

Total non-current liabilfies
Current labikties

Accounts and other peyables
Bank overdraft

Tokal curment lighitties

Todal Kabsitas

Total shareholder's equity and llabilities

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of theze financial stetements
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December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
213,428,340 330 525 540
218,773,167 261,020,220
432,199,507 581,545, 76(
251,805,618 £1%9,9080 621
243 238 1,530 928
4 4B5.87T1 15,165,147
258,814,726 2365 585 596
888,014,233 28,531 356
g = i1
363,000,000 363,000,000
48,852,078 44 204 118
[67,526,842) {62,155 95%)
179, 586,055 257,088 85y
T4 839110 L4 624 128
599,741,001 BY7 448 132
FL TR TAT 214
767,831 T4T 214
S0, 981,832 47 508 208
a7, T23,TES B2 2T 802
28,305,401 130,536 010
48,073,232 131,083 224
688,814,233 B2B 531 358
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AHMAD SULTAN ESSA AL JABER

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN



UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Exhibit — B-1

Revenues

Profit from investment in shares

Changes in fair value of investment at FVTPL
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses and other charges

Finance costs

General and administration expenses

Total expenses and other charges

Net profit for the year

Basic earnings per share

Notes

13
6 (B)
14

15

16

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
41,883,281 34,643,243
15,260,339 30,547,404

4,370 8,246
57,147,990 65,198,893

2,930,034 1,771,581

4,738,361 4,095,484
(7,668,395) (5,867,065)
49,479,595 59,331,828

0.136 0.163

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Exhibit — B-2
UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

December 31, December 31,
Notes 2022 2021

Net profit for the year 49,479,595 59,331,828
Other comprehensive income for the year
Changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI 6 (A) (10,134,615) 11,626,272
Profit from sale of investments at FVTOCI 3,577,089 3,774,894
Land revalution (117,499,200) -
Total other comprehensive income (loss) profit (124,056,726) 15,401,166
Total comprehensive (loss) profit for the year (74,577,131) 74,732,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Exhibit - C

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Balance at December 31, 2020

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

Dividends distribution

Board of director’'s remuneration
Transfer to retained earnings on sale of
investment at FVTOCI

Transfer to legal reserve

Balance at December 31, 2021

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Land Revaluation -Note (5)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends distribution

Board of director’s remuneration
Transfer to retained earnings on sale of
investment at FVTOCI

Transfer to legal reserve

Balance at December 31, 2022

Investments
revaluation Land
Share Legal reserve- revaluation Retained
capital reserve FVTOCI reserve earnings Total
363,000,000 38,970,935 (82,032,136) 297,085,855 25,190,484 642,215,138
- - - - 59,331,828 59,331,828
- - 11,626,272 - 3,774,894 15,401,166
- - 11,626,272 - 63,106,722 74,732,994
- - - - (18,150,000)  (18,150,000)
- - - - (1,350,000) (1,350,000)
- - 8,239,895 - (8,239,895) -
- 5,933,183 - - (5,933,183) -
363,000,000 44,904,118 (62,165,969) 297,085,855 54,624,128 697,448,132
- - - - 49,479,595 49,479,595
- - (10,134,615) - 3,577,089 (6,557,526)
- - - (117,499,200) - (117,499,200)
- - (10,134,615)  (117,499,200) 53,056,684  (74,577,131)
- - - - (21,780,000) (21,780,000)
- - - - (1,350,000) (1,350,000)
y - 4,773,742 - (4,773,742) -
- 4,947,960 - - (4,947,960) -
363,000,000 49,852,078 (67,526,842) 179,586,655 74,829,110 599,741,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Exhibit - D

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the year

Adjustment for: -

Provision for staff indemnity

Profit from investment in shares

Changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL
Finance cost

Bank interest

Operating (loss) before working capital changes

Accounts and other receivables
Accounts and other payables

Cash used in operating activities

Finance cost paid

Net movement in investment in shares

Proceed from investments sale and dividends received
Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Bank interest received

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Paid to shareholders

Board of Directors’ remuneration paid
Bank overdraft

Net cash flows (used in) / from financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
49,479,595 59,331,828
20,617 (58,437)
(41,883,281) (34,643,243)
(15,260,339) (30,547,404)
2,930,034 1,771,581
(3,870) (1,746)
(4,717,244) (4,147,421)
6,391 89,484
(393,112) 264,951
(5,103,965) (3,792,986)
(2,930,034) (1,771,581)
15,357,679 (106,316,307)
46,750,671 37,127,836
54,074,351 (74,753,038)
3,870 1,746

3,870 1,746
(18,313,464) (18,398,406)
(1,350,000) (1,350,000)
(45,104,033) 82,827,802
(64,767,497) 63,079,396
(10,689,276 ) (11,671,896)
15,155,147 26,827,043
4,465,871 15,155,147

The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.
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UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

1-

a)

b)

c)

d)

LEGAL STATUS AND PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company (Formerly Umm Al Qaiwain Cement Industries
Company), a Public Shareholding Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), was
incorporated in Umm Al Qaiwain by Amiri Decree number 2/82 on February 11, 1982.

The Company had obtained approval from the Securities and Commaodities Authority to change
the commercial activities and trade name to become Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments
Company P.S.C. and obtained a commercial license number 4558 from the Department of
Economic Development — Umm Al Qaiwain on April 24, 2016.

The company's business activity is development, establishment and management of real estate
enterprises, funds and stocks investments (stocks and bonds), investment, establishment and
institution in commercial enterprises, entertainment, agriculture, tourism, industrial,
infrastructure, educational services, health, energy and ownership and investment of classes
and units in the buildings of the investment areas.

The Company is domiciled at Umm Al Qaiwain, United Arab Emirates.
The registered address of the company is Umm Al Qaiwain — UAE.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and applicable requirements of UAE Commercial Companies Law
No. 32 of 2021.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain equity financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in UAE Dirham, which is the Company’s functional
currency, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made estimates and judgment that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Impact of COVID -19

In March 2020, COVID-19 was declared a pandemic by WHO (World Health Organization) and
is causing disruptions to business and economic activities across the globe. The local
government system in UAE has announced various measures to support businesses to mitigate
possible adverse impact due to the pandemic. The Company continues to monitor the situation
and the Company’s management have taken measures to continue the operations with minimal
disruptions and also have risk management plans in place to manage potential disruptions in the
future.



(@)

UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Due to the prevailing uncertain situation, the Company management have revisited its
judgements, estimates and risk management objectives and have considered the potential
impacts of the current volatility in determining the reported amounts of the Company’s financial
and non-financial assets as at December 31, 2022.

Going concern

Management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. The Company has been profitable, and it had positive net asset (equity), working capital
and cash flow positions as at the year end. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern
basis.

The Company continues to monitor the situation closely and the Company’s management have
taken measures to manage potential business disruptions from COVID -19 that may have on the
Company’s operations and financial performance in the future.

The Company’s management have also considered any impairment indicators and any
significant and concluded that there is no material impact due to COVID -19.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future.

Receivables from government entities are generally excluded from ECL calculation, as the
Company considers those receivable balances are fully recoverable. Further, balances due from
related parties, are also excluded from ECL calculation, as credit risk is considered to be nil
based on the fact that these related companies are either directly or indirectly supported by the
owners for any liquidity or financial crisis situations.

Due to the uncertainties caused by the COVID -19, the Company’s management have revisited,
reassessed and updated the inputs and forward —looking assumptions used in the computation
of expected credit losses (ECL) and have also reviewed customer balances to identify
customers with significant increase in credit risk and potential defaulters.



(3)

UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

e)

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Management has measured the Company’s obligation for the post-employment benefits of its
employees based on the provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. 33 of 2021, regarding
the regulation of employment relationship and its amendments. Management does not perform
an actuarial valuation as required by International Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits”
as it estimates that such valuation does not result to a significantly different level of provision.
The provision is reviewed by management at the end of each year, and any change to the
projected benefit obligation at the year-end is adjusted in the provision for employees’ end of
service benefits in the profit or loss.

Other provisions and liabilities

Other provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period only to the extent management
considers it probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
quantification of the liability require the application of judgment to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the actual cash outflows can take place in
subsequent years, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances. A change in estimate of a
recognized provision or liability would result in a charge or credit to profit or loss in the period in
which the change occurs.

New and amended IFRS Accounting Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily
effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2022. Their adoption has not
had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 The Company has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3
Reference to the Conceptual Business Combinations for the first time in the current year.
Framework The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018

Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They
also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within
the scope of IAS 37 Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. An acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as
a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
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UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

Amendments to IAS 16
Property, Plant and
Equipment- Proceeds before
Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37
Onerous Contracts—Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards 2018-
2020 Cycle

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment for the first time in the current
year. The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced before that asset is available for use.
l.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management Consequently, an entity
recognizes such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or
loss The entity measures the cost of those items in
accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of “testing whether
an asset is functioning properly”. IAS 16 now specifies this as
assessing whether the technical and physical performance of
the asset is such that it is capable of being used in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive
income, the financial statements shall disclose the amounts of
proceeds and cost included in profit or loss related to items
produced that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary
activities, and which line item(s) in the statement of
comprehensive income included) such proceeds and cost.

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 37 for the
first time in the current year. The amendments specify that the
cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
consist of both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labor or materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The Company has adopted the amendments included in the
Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-
2020 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The Annual
Improvements include amendments to four standards

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter
later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of
the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS 1:DI6 (a) can now also elect to
measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount that
would be included n the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date
of transition to IFRS Accounting Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation
procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the
subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption

in IFRS 1:D16 (a).
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the “10 per cent” test to assess whether to derecognize
a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower)
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf.

IFRS 16 Leases
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.
IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value. This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and
discount rates and enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows
and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value measurement.

New and revised IFRS Accounting Standards in issue but not yet effective.
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the
following new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective (and (in some cases) had not yet been adopted by the (relevant body)).

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and insurance Contracts

December 2021 amendments to

IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Company in future periods, except if indicated below

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach.

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into account
market interest rates and the impact of policyholders' options and guarantees.
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In June 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 77 to address concerns and
implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments
defer the date of initial application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the amendments) to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. At the same time, the IASB issued
Extension of the temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) that
extends the fixed expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

In December 2021. the IASB issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9--Comparative
Information (Amendment to IFRS 17) to address implementation challenges that were identified
after IFRS 17 was published. The amendment addresses challenges in the presentation of
comparative information.

IFRS 17 must be applied retrospectively unless impracticable, in which case the modified
retrospective approach or the fair value approach is applied.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of initial application is the start of the
annual reporting period which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the
beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures—Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognized in the parent's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognized in the former parent s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The Management anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an Impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 published in January 2020 affect only the presentation of liabilities as
current or noncurrent in the statement of financial position and not the amount or timing of
recognition of any asset, liability, Income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those
items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on
rights that are existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenant are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of “settlement” to make clear that settlement refers to
the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.



(7)

UMM AL QAIWAIN GENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY P.S.C.
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
UMM AL QAIWAIN - UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023, with early application permitted. The IASB is currently considering further amendments to
the requirements m IAS 1 on classification of liabilities as current or non-current, including
deferring the application of the January 2020 amendments.

The Management anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements in future periods.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies “with
material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity's financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraph in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information
that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be
disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting poky information relating to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,
with earlier application permitted and are applied prospectively. The amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 do not contain an effective date or transition requirements.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors—Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the IASB retained the
concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

e A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is
not the correction of an error.

e The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the
correction of prior period errors

The IASB added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on implementing IAS 8, which
accompanies the Standard. The IASB has deleted one example (Example 3) as it could cause
confusion in light of the amendments.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
beginning of that period with earlier application permuted.
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Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may
arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon
recognition of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the
commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognize the related deferred tax
asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the
recoverability criteria in IAS 12.

The IASB also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains how the amendments are
applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an
entity recognizes:

e A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

— Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
— Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognized as part of the cost of the related a

o The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023, with earlier application permitted.

The Management anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on
the Company's consolidated financial statements in future periods should such transactions
arise.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies used in the financial statement are as follows:

Impairment of non financial assets

At each statement of financial position date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of asset's fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. The asset's fair value is the amount for which that asset could
be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's length transaction. The value in
use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount due to
reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost would have been if the
impairment had not been recognized in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is obtained as "held

-for- trading".

In additional to financial reporting purposes, fair values measurements are categorized into three
levels based on the possibility of noting the degree of importance of inputs to the fair value
measurement process in relation to the entire measurement techniques which can be described
as follows:

-First Level inputs:
First level inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can obtain on the measurement date.

-Second level inputs:
Second level inputs are all inputs other than quoted prices included in first level that are
observable for assets or liabilities either directly or indirectly.

-Third level inputs :
Third level inputs are non-observable inputs for assets and liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI)

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and added as “cumulative changes in fair value of investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income” under equity. The fair value of these financial assets is its market
value.

When the financial asset is disposed, the related cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained
earnings.

Dividends from investments in securities are recognized in the statement of profits or losses
when the company's right to receive the dividends is established.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with recognition of
any gain or loss arising from a re-measurement in the profits or losses and any dividends or
interests acquired from the financial asset are included in the profits or losses. The fair value is
determined using the income method according to which the discounted cash flow method is
used to determine the present value of expected future economic benefits resulting from
investment ownership unless the impact of the discount is not material.

Debt instruments carried at amortized cost or at FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model for
managing the asset. For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI). At initial recognition of a financial
asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial assets are part of an
existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model.
The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the
business models have changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting
period, the Company has not identified a change in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an
equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognized in OCI is not subsequently to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI are subject
to impairment.

* Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial
assets affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to
the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the
change n business model that results in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During
the current financial year and previous accounting period, there was no change in the business
model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were
made.

o Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

¢ Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits where cash equivalents are short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

o Other receivables

The Company's financial assets fall within the category of "Other receivables". Other
receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, and balances due from related parties) are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial
liabilities’. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings, trade and other payables and
balances due to related parties) are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method unless when the effect of discounting their future cash flows to their
carrying amounts using the effective interest method is immaterial.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides for employees’ end of service benefits to its employees that meets or
exceeds the provisions of the UAE Labour Law. The entitlement to these benefits is based
upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of minimum
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment.

In respect of the Emirati employees, the Company makes contributions to the General Pension
and Social Security Authority, which is calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries in
accordance with the respective local laws pertaining to retirement and pensions. The
Company’s share of contribution to these schemes is charged to the profit or loss in the year to
which they relate.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

Provisions

Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be estimated
reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date, that is, the amount
that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the statement of financial
position date or to transfer it to a third party.

Provisions are reviewed and adjusted at each statement of financial position date. If outflows, to
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recorded as income.
Provisions are only used for the purpose for which they were originally recognized.
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Investment property

Investment properties are non current assets held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, as well as those held for undetermined future use but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business or use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes .

Investment property is measured initially at cost. The Company determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment properties are impaired.
Whenever the carrying amount of an investment property exceeds their recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss . The recoverable amount is the
higher of investment property's fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. The fair value is
determined based on an annual valuation by an independent external valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Expenses incurred for replacing component of investment properties items, which are accounted
for separately are capitalised, and carrying value of replaced component is written off.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the item of the related investment properties. All other expenses are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss when incurred.

Transfers are made from investment properties to development properties only when there is a
change in use evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sell. Such transfers
are made at the carrying value of the properties at the date of transfer.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain future
events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the amounts
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements
but are disclosed.

Dividend Distribution
The Company recognizes dividends as a liability in the financial statements in the period in
which the shareholders approve the dividend distribution.

Expenses recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefits related to
a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen and can be measured reliably.

An expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss when an expenditure produces no future
economic benefits, or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify or
cease to qualify for recognition in the statement of financial position as an asset, such as in the
case of asset impairments.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into the functional currency of
the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The Company does not have non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year. Foreign
currency differences are recognized in profit or loss.
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a)

b)

Liabilities
Trade and

Bank overdraft

Total liabi

Liabilities
Trade and

Bank overdraft

Total liabi

Revenues

Revenues represent the total value of profits from sale of shares and dividends of
shares during the year, net of discounts and returns.

Income from distributed profits is recognized in the profit or loss statement when the right of the
company to receive the distributed profits is established.

invested

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risks management

The Company use of financial instruments exposes it to financial risks such as credit risk,
Liquidity risks, market risk, foreign currency risk and capital risk.

The Company continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes the necessary procedures to
limit these risks at acceptable levels.

The significant risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to pay an obligation causing
the other party to incur a financial loss.

The financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of receivables on investments.

Liquidity risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its cash obligations. The
management of liquidity risks consist of keeping sufficient cash, and arranging financing sources
through enough facilities, managing highly liquid assets, and monitoring liquidity on a yearically
basis by method of future cash flow.

The maturity of liabilities stated below based on the year from the financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. In the case of financial instruments that do not have a contractual
maturity date, the maturity is based on management’s estimate of time year in which the asset
will be collected or disposed and the liability settled.

The following is maturity table for the financial liabilities as of December 31, 2022:

From 3
On Within 3 months to From 1 to
demand months 1 year 5 years Total
other payables - 50,581,632 - - 50,581,632
37,723,769 - - - 37,723,769
lities 37,723,769 50,581,632 - - 88,305,401
The following is maturity table for the financial liabilities as of December 31, 2021:
From 3
On Within 3 months to From 1 to
demand months 1 year 5 years Total
other payables - 47,508,208 - - 47,508,208
82,827,802 - - - 82,827,802
lities 82,827,802 47,508,208 - - 130,336,010
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Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk which causes fluctuation in financial instruments value as a
result of change in market prices. International Financial Reporting Standards require disclosure
of the financial instruments that are exposed to fluctuation in its value as a result of change in its
market prices. The financial instruments that expose the Company to market price fluctuation
risk as at December 31, 2022 comprise of investment in financial assets amounting to AED
470,678,786.

Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is defined as a risk resulting from the fluctuation in the value of financial
instruments as a result of changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. On the date of the
financial statements, the Company maintained recognized financial instruments which are
exposed to the foreign currency risk that may cause a change in the related cash flow amounts
as a result of the fluctuation of foreign currency exchange rates.

The details of the recognized financial instruments in foreign currencies stated in the attached
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022 are as follows: -

Type of foreign Carrying value

currency in UAE Dirham

Financial assets — Kuwait KD 58,554,701
Cash at banks — Kuwait KD 3,930,058
Financial assets — Oman OMR 1,573,799
Cash at banks — Oman OMR 390,561

Capital risk

Regularly, the Company reviews its capital structure which includes debt and equity securities
and considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of the capital. The
Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders though the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong capital base in order to support its business and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
economic conditions.

The Company does not have borrowings. It is financed mainly by own equity. The Company’s
capital management policy remained unchanged since the previous year.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value measurement

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at a measurement date. The
Company has not disclosed the fair values of its receivables, bank balances and payables
because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities that are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or any similar agreements.
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5- Investment proprty
Investment property is a Land owned by the Company with an area of 10,671,317 square feet.
During the year, the Company swap a piece of land in exchange for another to become one
piece of land. The Company decided at the end of the year to reclassified the Land into an
Investment property which was revaluted according to the revalution certificate issued from
Umm Al Qaiwain municipality on 17 January 2023.
The movement of the Investment property during the year was as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Balance at 1 January 330,925,540 330,925,540
Changes in fair value -Exibit C (117,499,200) -
213,426,340 330,925,540

6- INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
A- Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Quoted 216,921,850 258,239,293
Unquoted 1,851,317 2,780,927
218,773,167 261,020,220

The investments distributed according to the geographical location are as follows:

Quoted
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
In UAE 192,916,422 229,306,901
In GCC countries 24,005,428 28,932,392
216,921,850 258,239,293
Unguoted
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
In GCC countries 1,851,317 2,780,927
1,851,317 2,780,927
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B-

The transactions during the year over these investments as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Balance at January 1 261,020,220 279,527,078
Net movement during the year (32,112,438) (30,133,130)
Changes in investment revaluation (10,134,615) 11,626,272
218,773,167 261,020,220

The investments above includes shares amounting of AED 113,880,738 as securities against
bank facilities granted to the company

Investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All investments through profit or loss are quoted and distributed according to the geographical
location as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
In UAE 217,633,864 203,098,876
In GCC countries 34,271,755 16,791,645
251,905,619 219,890,521

The transactions during the year over these investments as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Balance at January 1 219,890,521 52,893,680
Net movement during the year 16,754,759 136,449,437
Changes in investment revaluation 15,260,339 30,547,404
251,905,619 219,890,521

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Cash balance with brokers 91,736 332,037
Due from the staff 100,300 100,000
Bank guarantees 1,590 1,590
Dividends receivable - 1,050,000
Others 49,610 56,301
243,236 1,539,928
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(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

8- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Cash on hand 26,568 19,809

Cash at banks- UAE 118,684 118,873

Cash at banks - Kuwait 3,930,058 14,677,100

Cash at banks - Oman 390,561 339,365

4,465,871 15,155,147
9- SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
a) Capital:
The Company’s Capital as shown in Exhibit A amounting to AED 363,000,000 consists of fully
paid-up 363,000,000 shares of one Dirham per value for each share.
b) Legal Reserve:

1) In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year is to
be deducted and retained in legal reserve account and such appropriation shall be
suspended when the reserve balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company’s
paid up capital. Such appropriation will be resumed whenever the reserve balance becomes
less than 50% of the Company’s paid up capital.

2) The movements over legal reserve during the year as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Balance at January 1 44,904,118 38,970,935

Transferred from profit 4,947,960 5,933,183

Balance at end of the year — Exhibit A 49,852,078 44,904,118

c) Cumulative changes in the fair value of investments at FVTOCI:

Cumulative changes in the fair value of investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income represent accumulated gains and losses arising from the revaluation of financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income.
10- LANDS REVALUATION RESERVE

The lands revaluation reserve represents the increase or decrease in the value of lands in
previous years resulting from the revaluation of the lands at fair value by independent evaluator
at the end of previous financial years.

At the end of the year, the company’s management decided to reclassify the lands into an
investment property, the decreased in the carrying amount of the Lands from the revaluation at
the end of the year has been recognised in the land valuation reserve.

The movement of the reserve during the year were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Balance at January 1 297,085,855 297,085,855
Decrease during the year (117,499,200) -
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11-

12-

13-

14-

15-

PROVISION FOR INDEMNITY

The movements over this item during the year are as follows:

Balance at January 1
Additions during the year
Decrease during the year

BANK OVERDRAFT

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
747,214 805,651
20,617 56,485
- (114,922)
767,831 747,214

The bank overdraft as shown in Exhibit A represents the withdrawn overdraft balances from
bank facilities granted to the Company from local banks in the United Arab Emirates against

garantees of securities amount of AED 113,880,738.

PROFIT FROM INVESTMENT IN SHARES

Dividend received
Profit from sale of investment in shares

OTHER INCOME

Bank interest
Sundry income

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Employees’ bonus

Air ticket

Rent

End of services benefits
Leave expenses

Water and electricity
Profissional fees
Sundry expenses

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
24,045,246 17,405,538
17,838,035 17,237,705
41,883,281 34,643,243

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
3,870 1,746
500 6,500
4,370 8,246

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
2,045,507 2,038,507
258,000 100,000
37,244 24,250
90,000 90,000
20,617 56,485
158,191 18,864
15,250 26,000
111,188 113,651
2,002,364 1,627,727
4,738,361 4,095,484
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16- BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Profit for the year 49,479,595 59,331,828
Average number of ordinary share 363,000,000 363,000,000
Basic earnings per share 0.136 0.163
17- CREDIT FACILITIES:
A) As of the attached financial statements date, the credit facilities extended to the Company by the
banks are as follows:
Overdraft AED 270,000,000
Bank guarantee (Labour) AED 1,590

- The overdraft facility has been obtained from local banks in the UAE for the purpose financing
investments and working capital requirements. The interest rate is calculated on the basis of one
to three months EIBOR plus a margin.

- In case of exceeding the agreed upon granted bank facilities or any arrears in the payment of
the obligations, interest shall be imposed on such excess/ overdue liability in addition to the
interest agreed upon above.

b) The above facilities are extended against guaranteed shares.

18- PROPOSED DIVIDENDS AND BOARD OF DIRECTOR REMUNERATION:

Board of Directors proposed to the general assembly meeting to approve the following

distribution of profit and Board of Director remuneration:

1) Proposed dividends to shareholders 6% of the paid-up capital amounting to AED 21,780,000
(6 % for 2021)

2) Proposed Board of Director remuneration is AED 1,350,000 (AED 1,350,000 for 2021)

The above-mentioned dividend and Board of Director remuneration are subject to shareholder

approval at the Annual General Assembly Meeting and is not recorded as a liability in these

financial statements.

19- GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Company’s geographical segments are based on the location of the Company’s assets. The
two geographical segments in which the Company operates comprise of UAE and GCC.

A- Assets distribution

The following table shows the distribution of the Company’s segment assets by geographical
market:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
In UAE 624,273,378 764,676,713
In GCC countries 64,540,855 63,854,643
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(All amounts are in U.A.E. Dirham)

B- Financial assets at fair value distribution
The following table demonstrates financial assets information, the geographical allocation and the nature of activities in which invested:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Total

1- Investments at FVTOCI December 31, December 31,

UAE GCC UAE GCC 2022 2021

Banking sector 155,730,000 828,702 165,212,533 618,728 156,558,702 165,831,261
Finance and investment sector 8,396,966 8,678,212 10,984,347 8,982,676 17,075,178 19,967,023
Real estate sector 17,945,099 5,383,132 18,237,365 9,310,564 23,328,231 27,547,929
Industrial sector 222,359 4,693,575 277,316 6,321,801 4,915,934 6,599,117
Service sector 2,720,000 142,054 16,170,000 - 2,862,054 16,170,000
Energy sector - - 10,153,851 - - 10,153,851
Telecommunication sector - 6,131,070 - 6,479,550 6,131,070 6,479,550
Insurance sector 7,901,998 - 8,271,489 - 7,901,998 8,271,489

192,916,422 25,856,745 229,306,901 31,713,319 218,773,167 261,020,220
2- Investments at FVTPL o
Banking sector 5,370,000 11,735,338 3,603,724 862,782 17,105,338 4,466,506
Finance and investment sector 63,445,014 14,700,738 40,334,353 13,268,126 78,145,752 53,602,479
Real estate sector 6,864,901 3,348,807 9,003,091 2,329,593 10,213,708 11,332,684
Industrial sector 14,150,000 1,350,552 21,900,000 331,144 15,500,552 22,231,144
Services sector 5,847,120 3,136,320 7,629,877 - 8,983,440 7,629,877
Energy sector 1,160,000 - 21,646,149 - 1,160,000 21,646,149
Telecommunication sector 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 -
Insurance sector 111,086,829 - 98,981,682 - 111,086,829 98,981,682
Basic material sector 8,460,000 - - - 8,460,000 -

217,633,864 34,271,755 203,098,876 16,791,645 251,905,619 219,890,521
Total 410,550,286 60,128,500 432,405,777 48,504,964 470,678,786 480,910,741
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20- BENEFITS OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT AND MANAGERS

The benefits of the key management members and managers are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Salaries and management benefits 1,840,504 1,735,706
1,840,504 1,735,706

The amount mentioned above is recognised as an expense during the year.

21- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can
arise between book values and the fair value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the
presumption that the Company is going concern without any attention or requirement to materially
curtail the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped at
three levels of the fair value hierarchy. This Company is determined at the lowest level of significant
inputs used in the measurement of fair value, as follows:

Level one: Prices offered (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level two: Inputs other than quoted prices within Level one that can be observable for assets or
liabilities either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices).

Level three: Inputs of assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
As at December 31, 2022

Level one Level two Total
Quoted equity investments — FVTPL 251,905,619 - 251,905,619
Quoted equity investments — FVTOCI 216,921,850 - 216,921,850
Unquoted equity investments- FVTOCI - 1,851,317 1,851,317
468,827,469 1,851,317 470,678,786
As at December 31, 2021
Level one Level two Total
Quoted equity investments — FVTPL 219,890,521 - 219,890,521
Quoted equity investments — FVTOCI 258,239,293 258,239,293
Unquoted equity investments- FVTOCI - 2,780,927 2,780,927
478,129,814 2,780,927 480,910,741
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22-

23-

24-

25-

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no transactions with related parties during the year ended December 31,2022.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
There are no social contributions during the year ended December 31, 2022.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities as of the financial statements’ date comprises of bank guarantees amounting to
AED 1,590.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with presentation adopted in the
current year.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2023.
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Preface

About the Company

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company - P.S.C (Umm Al Qaiwain
Cement Industries P.S.C - Formerly), was established pursuant to the Emiri
Decree No. 82/2 on February 11", 1982. The Company was registered at
the competent government authorities in accordance to the applicable in the
United Arab Emirates, the Company's head office and legal address located
in Umm Al Qaiwain, United Arab Emirates.

The permitted purposes of the Company are represented in the following
activities (as mentioned in the trade license), including, but not limited to:

Investment and develop real estate projects and manage the same.

L

« Investment in funds and securities - shares and bonds.

+ Investment in commercial projects, set up and manage the same.

* Investment in tourism projects.

+ Investment in educational services projects, set up and manage the

same.
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First: Statement of procedures taken to
complete the corporate governance
system

during 2022 and method of implementing thereof

Governance's Principles Application
The company is committed to apply best practices as follows:

The company's articles of association have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and its amendments according to
Federal Decree Law (32) of 2021 regarding commercial companies, and the
decision of the Chairman of the Authority's Board of Directors No. (3/ R.M) of 2020
and No. (6/R.M) of 2022 regarding the standards of institutional discipline and
corporate governance of public shareholding companies and its modifications.
Implementing the policies, procedures and decisions issued by the authority
regarding the standards of institutional discipline and corporate govemnance of
public shareholding companies, commitment to applying best practices regarding
the board and its committees, dealing transparantly with the external auditor and
implementing the decisions of the general assembly.

The company disclosed the quarterly and annual financial statements after
reviewing and approving them by the external auditor within the permitted legal
period.

The company’s board members, employees, and auditor adhered to professional
conduct rules, policies, internal controls, and complied with the applicable laws and
regulations.

The company's website has been updated which includes all of the company's

mformaltion www.gic-uag.ae, to enhance disclosure and fransparency. and to offer
any new or substantive decisions, and it is considered one of the means to reach
the shareholder to see all the events directly.
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Second: State the ownership and
transaction of board of directors’

members

their spouses, sons in the company's securities during the year

2022:
Crwmed Shares as of Total
5 No N Posit Total
s iz 311272022 o B
Charman 14,234 TES
30,541 488
1 Salarn Abdulia Ealsrn Al Hosani Chaitrran {inect & indiroct
oanerathipy ) = -
Wile: — T
A s
Dapuly Chaimman: - 3 =
2 Ahmed Sufian Esas Al-Jdsber Daputy Chalrman | Wils: — e
Minor Son: — -
Al Salam Company Lid
Represenied by Mr. | Mohamed Salem | Managing Direcior 108,126,700 - -
§ Abdidla Al Hosani)
s o et g el oy L nete e o
Mohammed Salam Abdullah Al Hosani | =i Managing Wile & Minar Sans =
Daresctor =
Member =
4 Ahmed Salem Abdulla Al Hosani Member :;:“"-5"3 b -
o=
Minor Sone: - =
S Mamber — is
2 Shaikh ."Sau;::nd bin Saud Al ke iy s
irmi
Minor Dona = -
Eahad Abdul Rahman Saud VAR = > .
. Almukhaeim Wember Vil — - =
Minar Song: — =
Mambar: T 434 389 = 608,541
¥ Ahmed Omar Sakerm Alkorhi Member = 3l
Rabma Mohammed Rahma & - i .
-]
Shamal Bdarribear A i
Shaikh ! Abdulaziz Massar Rashid Al iy
]
Minail Memiar -
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Third: Board Formation

Pursuant to the provisions of Article (19) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the number of members of the Board of Directors have been
determined at nine members to be elected by the Ordinary General
Assembly. The Board of Directors elected at the Ordinary General Assembly
held on Saturday, April 11, 2020 acknowledged in its first meeting in 2020 -
after the completion of the election — the composition of the Board and its
Committees and the Internal Control Department, in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association and Corporate Governance Regulations,
as follows:

Below is a detailed statement of the composition of the Board of
Directors as per the requirements of governance:

)5;,,#
o

L]
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A, Elected Board of Directors at the ordinary General Assembly meeting in
11/04/2020:
Their positions in
N Tikle C Experiences & Membership in other governmenial, .
Abegory Cualificatsns fComparies and Enstitu fions e gulatory, o
commernial poslions
Bachelor of Buainess
Bdrmanissraton - Depuly Chairman af Guif
. Deputy Chairman of |Modical Projecis Comgpany,
1- Salem Abdulla Han- Gull Medical Projects |  Mesmnbear of tha Board of
Bainmal Hosani | Coairman | pandani |0 Exscuivel ey, Member of | Dinectors.of Al Buhoira - T
tha Boand of Direclars Matonal nsurance
of Al Buhaira Nationad Company.
Insurarce Compary.
Hegh Sehod snn
Diplarna of
Telscormmumcations-
hamber of the Board
lof Directars. af Umm &l formar mamiber of the
Quwain Cament from | Membar of the Board of Hational Counail,
- Ahmad Sultan ana'lr Mo - Mon-Executivel 1982 to 1586 and a Dirociors of Umm Al Formies Mesmibat ol the |
[Ezza Al Jabear Chaimman | Indspendan frrmer mamber af the | Cuwain Cement from 1882 | Supreme Cammities for| el
Maticnal Council, to 1586 Hnsonality and
[Former Member of e l‘Pum in Atw Direaki
Suprarme Commities
far Matisnalily and
Passports in Al
Drasts
Bachalor of
Commimarcs and Masie
of Financial
tg.m..lamm_ agament, Wam Member of the Board of
i Maraging Man- of the Board of Dwactors al Gulf Medical
:ww&b;:r. Pirecior |lndependunt Emscubye I:rr-af.'.tur:nquH' Compary, Mesmber| 2017
_ Medical Projects | of e Board of Direciors o
la Al Hosard) Compary, Mombar of | Uinfon Insurance Compary,
e Baard of Direciors
of Usion Insurance
m
Master of Scance in
Financial
e | s
jah Inguirance
&nmad Salem Man- L S, Aaagigl o arriner
Nl Hossni | MEMER | e | Mo eRRoutive]  divectac of Sharjen | =T TEE R T - i
“""“m“"“:fm“'mm Sharjah Cement &
|Hnummnf5hu]m'm"'ﬂ Development Co
Cement & Indusérial
MI—'
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Mame Title
Caterny Qualifications Companas and Ipstitutions W,' i S
Bacreior ol Busnass
g mirkstration -
Bawm |E emcnirem Managet o AL Erncutrm Manage: of Al Saud
e S Company Lk, Coampany L, Bermbar sand
hlnfid Bln Smat Al | Mombh |Wndapandent o e | Wlamiier anct depuly dapuy ssscutivs mansge of Al - pEas
sxaciiive managar of Al Majar |nessrrsnt Company
MRy Inveg Ty
IE!-r-ﬁ E%
=3 Adminssration|
Chenf Esncutive Odficer
of Maonal Irresstments|  Chef Esscuivs Cilficer of
FEG, s s Naknal imealments PSC,
Aniryet o Kl Inyeessrrami A nahysd ol Kot
Ganaml Trading, Gareml Trading, Coneeting
|Comracing and Fommign)  and Foreign | nvesomenm
Fahad Abdul Irnsestmant Compary, | Company. Wele insnational
S | linda e ‘Walra i nieemaiiorad Ervmnimant Cosnpony, Kuwod | Kuest Micissy of 2047
ikt I I wostufive | irestmam Compary, | Minsiny ol Francs —Budgels Franco
e Mdininy o Specisist Crakman of the
Finance — Budpes. | Based of Diressoms of Arean A
Epocialist, Crarman of | Kuwal Ras Estels Comoany,
= Bawr of Deaciam of WarmBor of soverasi othar shocig
Aricar ALK Raal sompanies n Kol
Eslala Comgary, Lubanan.
Membar of savaisi
wioCk COMpanias n
B Lebanan
%E BLainaas
Adminstaton and
ALoOUnAnG - F o
Dibwcior of e Ofee
e Mirssinr o
Agrcultune and bembar of the Board of
Fiarairas . Faime Directons af Abu Dhabi '%m”
, Oiracior of ihe Mvsty, | investmert Company, Membed ™, roce o e
mﬂl'“ﬂ'" o M Al DEabi, Member of | o ™ Board of Diwciors of Al and
Lwambar i ol [tho Board of Dhoeciors of Amb Insumncs Group [ARIG), 11
et ndapenden) sl [ b Dhebliavestment | Chalmaniof the Board ot | | iSPees. Formar
Compary, Meerdn of | Dircsom of the Cooperatve a:.:umw
Board of Dirmcior of Associsbon for Housing and '*“'m!'- Abu
Arad Insurance Grodm Davalogimant im Dube
ARG, Chadrman ol
ard of Diencian of
Coapargive Associsbo
o Hepasing and
Drfrivatoprvad i Dubai
Rehma o Hq-::rglnrurm“—
Batvan | iiambas | 0 of Bamming GCED of Banking Comporaies
Shamal Indepandent o culivs Comporste Oroup- | Grown - Sharjah | slamic Bark i Ll
Srarjah Iglamic Bank
Waaiar of Hurman
Rascurss snd
Bachaior of Busiress.
Admirsstration, v Inapsrine
Shaeiih | Abdulazin) Non - Mot ool i Bcaaed aof Marekes of e Board of Banking “1
ans Fasteg Al Mgrwidar |indaparced ” of the Emimsies Disciomn of tha Emimies | Suparaion o tha | 2020
Inuug-u Comparsy, Irsuranos Comgarsy Caniral Bork ol tha
Serior Inspscior of Emirmng.
Banking Supendsicn ai
the Cariral Bank al tha
Emeaies
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B Statement of representation of the female in the Board of Directors for the
year 2022

The percentage of female representation on the Board of Directors for 2022: None.

> Reasons for the non-representation of any female member to the Board of
Directors:

The female component will be represented in the upcoming Board of Directors elections
according to the relevant regulations.

D. atatement for the following:

1- Total remunerations of the Members of the Board members paid for the year
2021:

Members of the Board of Directors have received an amount of one million and three
hundred fifty thousand dirhams for the year 2021, which was adopted in the General
Assambly held in April 25™ 2022

2- Total remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors proposed for the
year 2022 and which are presented at the annual general assembly meating for
approval:

The Board of Directors proposed in its meeting on 11-03-2023 - based on the
recommendation of the MNomination and Remuneration Committee Disbursing
remunerations to members of the Board of Directors for the year ending on December
31, 2022, with a total amount of AED 1,350,000/ the proposal will be presented at the
annual general meeting for approval.

3- Details of allowances, salaries, or additional fees and their reasons, which a
member of the board of directors received other than committee attendance
allowances:

No allowances or salaries were paid for attending the sessions of the committees
emanating from the Council for the fiscal year 2022

4- Details of the allowances for attending the sessions of the committees
emanating from the board which was paid by the members of the board of
directors for the fiscal year 2022:

No allowances or salaries were paid for attending the sessions of the committess
emanating from the Council during the year 2022
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E- Number of Board of Directors meetings held during the fiscal year 2022 and
the number af personal attendances for all membears with an indication of the

members present in the proxy

The company's board of directors held four meetings during the year 2022, as

follows:
¥ _—
e Saturday 26 |umuyzupm saturday 05 Saturday 24
March 2022 . | ] Movember 2022 December 2022
He apalagized far 1 He apolagized for 1
Mr. Salem Abdulla Salem | not atlending with | not attending with g J
Al Hosani an acceptable an accepiable
BXCLIBE BXCLEE
“ar
Mr. Ahmad Sultan Essa Al , : |
Jaber 3 Y " :
Al Salam Limited Co, 1 1 1
{Represanted by Mr. i
Mohammed Salem 2 ¥ Y ¥
Abdulla Al Hasani)
-
Sheikh / Saud Majed bin J ’ E:Hi:‘;d:;:‘
Saud & Qa " m u
’ Qassimi Ezga Al Jaber
I — —— |
Mr. Fahad Abdul Rahman Delegated Mr Delegated Mr
Saud AlMukhgizim ! L Salem Andula Al | Salem Abdulta Al
Hpsani Hosani
=T —
Mr. Ahmad Omar Salem -
Al arhl b ] Y N
e 1 Sy =
He apalogized for
Mr. Rahmah Mohammed not &ttending with
Rahmah Al Shamsi K v an ama-gghm X
EEDUSE,
e d
Mr. Ahmed Salem Abdulla _ Dalsgated Mr D;ﬂh-g:ud Mr
Salem Al Hosani L ¥ Meharmmed Salem ohammed
Abdulla Al Hosani 5"""‘::';‘:::““ Al
Sheikh/Abdukaziz Nasser =
Rashid Al Moalla ' | v
e —_—
%
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F. Number of Board decisions issued by passing during financial year 2022
No decisions of the Board of Directors to pass during the financial year 2022.

(5. State the duties and competencies of the Board of Directors made by the
member or executive management during the year 2022 based on the authorization
of Board of Directors:

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, deputy chairman as well as the member of the
Board of Directors shall have the sole right to sign on behalf of the Company, in
accordance with the powers authorized to them by the Board of Directors or any other
member authorized by the Board of Directors in this regard.

According to the above controls, the Managing Director and the General Manager of the
Company shall conduct the daily business of the Company pursuant to the best practices
of governance and the provisions of the Articles of Associations and the powers
authorized to them by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has authorized the
executive management in the following matters:

« To manage the Company's business and provide directions to the executive
management in line with the Company's strategic objectives, policies prescribed by
the Board of Directors, the provisions of the law and the provisions of other legislation
related to the Company's business and activities.

* To provide the Board of Directors with accurate periodic reports on the financial
position of the Company, its business and the procedures taken in the management of
risks and internal control reguiations to enable the Board of Directors to review the
developed objectives, plans and policies and accountability of the executive
management concerning its performance.

* To submit recommendations regarding any proposals deemed necessary
concerning the Company's business.

= To provide the regulatory bodies with any information, data and documents
required in accordance with the provisions of the law, regulations, instructions and
decisions therato.

« Toappoint the competencies needed by the Company.

» To manage the Company's assets and invest the surplus funds within the
framework of the risk and revenue structure approved by the Board of Directors.
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+ To approve the interim financial statements, quarterly reports of the Company and
initially approve the annual financial statements.

o To represent the Company before third parties as authorized by the Board of
Directors or the Chairman.

« To sign cheques and transfer funds and conclude transactions with banks within
the scope specified in the authorization decision.

« To sign on behalf of the Company before all federal and local government
agencies, public and private institutions and assume the legal responsibility, as
determined,

H. A statement of the details of transactions carmed out with refated parties
(stakeholders) with an explanation of the nature of the relationship and type of
transacthon

There were no transactions with the related parties (stakeholders) during the year 2022,
nor were there any fransactions camed out by the company during the year 2022
equals 5% or more of the company's capital.

}»\f,f
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|. CQrganizational structure of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investments Company:

P S
Board al THrectors
“‘-._f_a"'
| | (1]
N
N Nt & se:;;:w
Managing Director Awdif Commiites Femunerition Besard ai Dt
Pl | F i
Internal Contred
Camieral Manager
Department
o o S
P N P T,
Firancial Manager Gﬁﬁsw Trvestors Retations
T o o 2
-y N
General Accounts— Emyplovess Affairs
Department Department
b g b S
F s
Pubiic Relations
Drepastment
M
Sévice i
Rpubicwes
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J. Detailed statement to the name of semor execunve staff in the company

I Sr. Plami
I Maohammd Salem
1 Abdulla Al Hosani
(Represented to Al
Salem Limied Co.)

Managing Direcior

Total bonuses
for 2 Paid
in 2022 (AED)

15’0.0’“‘0-"

(Remunaration
al thie Board of
Directors
membars)

Sheikh / Sacud bin
hasser Rashid Al
Moalla

General Manager

11/072016

Tamer Abdul Mapd
hMohamed

Financial Manager

107052001

There are no other in-kind / matenal bonuses were (dentified for the year 2022,
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Fourth: External Auditor

i} About the Auditor of the Company Mis: Rodl Middle East:

The parent company, Rod| and Partner, was established in 1977 in Nuremberg, Germany,
and since then it has expanded to 84 offices in 37 countries. The company provides
integrated solutions for auditing, taxes and business consulting as a leading global
services company. By establishing a new presence in the Gulf region and the Middle East
and North Africa, Rodl Middle East was created in parinership with Hikmat Mekhaimer to
provide the growing region with the aim of providing specialized advice taking into account

the laws of the Middie East to help clients grow their business intematicnally and
constantly increase their value. The company is headquartered in Kuwait and the regional
office in Dubai. Rodl Middle East supports clients through branches in many countries of
the Gulf Cooperation Council and the countries of the Middle East. A team of specialists
in the company provides a diverse and unique set of professional services to maximize
the success of therr clients using a multidisciplinary approach. Rod| Middie East provides
a range of professional product servicas such as auditing, consulting, transactions, taxes
and external contracting in the GCC region.

B Fees of the External Auditor during the year 2024

Rodl Middle East

Partner Audit Eyad Samara

The number of vears spent as an external auditor
for the company

Total audit fees for the year 2022 inclusive of tax

Fees and cosits of other services other than an audii
of the financial statements for the year 2022

Four years

AED 93,750

Mon
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No extemal auditor other than the company auditor provided any other senvices during
the year 20Z2.

C There ara no remarks by the extemnal auditor on the interim and annual lists for the
year 2022

Fifth: The Audit Committee

A, “|, Sheikh / Saud Majed Bin Saud Al Qasimi, Chairman of the Audit Commitiee,
acknowledge my responsibility for the commitiee's system in tha company and for my
review of its work mechanism and verification of its effectiveness.”

H The names of the members of the Audit Committes
1- Sheikh / Saud Majid bin Saud Al Qasimi Head of the Committes
Z2- Mr. Ahmed Salern Abdullah Al Hosani Member

3- Mr. Ahmed Mchamed Mansour Albeba Member from outside the Board of Directors

Statement of the terms of refarence and tasks assigned to the audit committee:
» Review the company's financial and accounting policies and procadures.
= Monitor and review the integrity of the company's financial statements and reports
(quarterly, half-yearly and annual) as part of her regular work during the year and after
the accounts are closed.
+ Setting and mplementing the policy of contracting with the external auditor and
submitting reports (o the Board of Directors stating the issues that it deems necessary
to take action on, while providing recommendations for the steps necessary o be
taken.
« Reviewing and following up the independance of the external auditor and the
extent of his objectivity, and discussing the scope and nature of the audil process and
the extent of its effectiveness in accordance with the approved auditing standards.

e
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« Establish controls that enable company employees to report any possible
violations in financial reports, internal control, or other matiers in a confidential manner
and the steps to conduct independent and far investigations of these violations.

+ Monitor the company's compliance with the rules of professional conduct.

« Foliow-up and supervise the insiders dealings, if any

The number of meetings heid by the Audit Commitiee during the year 2022

hat

The Committee held Four meetings, as follows:

F o —— ﬂ
Sr. Moembers = 2023
1 EShaikh Saud Bin Majid Saud Al 4
Cassimi

5 Mr. Ahmed Salem Abdullah Al
Hosani
5 Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Mansour
AlBeba (outside the Board)

Sixth: Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

A “I / Rahmah Mohammad Rahmah Al Shamsi chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, acknowledged my responsibility for the committee systam in
the company and for my review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.”

b

Fail
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B Mames of members of the Nomination and Remuneration Commiities

1. Mr. Ranhmah Mohammad Rahmah Al Shamsi — Head of the Committee.
{Independent / Non-Executive).

P 8 Sheikh / Saud bin Majid Saud Al Qasimi - Member, (Independent / Non-Executive).
3. Mr. Ahmed Omar Salem Al-Karbi - Member. (Non-Independent / Non-Executive).

statomant of the powers and tasks antrusted to the Nomination and Remunearation
Committee

« Setting a special policy for candidacy for membership in the Board of Directors and
the Executive Management aimed at taking into account gender diversification within
the formation and encouragement of women through incentive benefits and programs.
« Organizing and following-up the procedures for nomination for membership in the
Board of Directors in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations and the
provisions of this decision.

* Ensuring the independence of the independent members on an ongoing basis.

+ Preparing the policy for granting rewards, benefits, incentives and salaries to the
members of the company's board of directors and employees, and reviewing them
annually, and the committaa

= must verify that the rewards and benefits granted to the company's senior
executive management are reasonable and commensurate with the company's
performance.

« The annual review of the required skills requirements appropriate for the
membership of the Board of Directors and preparing a description of the capabilities
and qualifications required for the membership of the Board of Directors, including
determining the time that a member needs to allocate to the work of the Board of
Directors.

*« Review the structure of the Board of Directors and submit recommendations
regarding changes that can be mada

» Determine the company's needs for competencies at the level of senior axecutive
management and employees and the basis for selecting them

» Prepanng the policy on human resources and training in the company and
monitoring its implementation and reviewing it annually

A
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C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year 2022:
The Committee held one meeting, as follows:
Members 26 March 2022
Mr. Rahmah Mohammed Rahmah Al Shamsi ¥ 1
2 | Sheikh / Saud bin Majid Saud Al Qasimi v |
Mr. Ahmad Omar Salem AlKorbi v

Seventh: The supervision and Follow-
up Committee of insider's
Transactions

The Audit Committee - in view of its direct interaction with the financial and equity
departments in the Company, and the acquainted ' statements and reports of Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange and the Kuwait Stock Exchange - it follows up such transactions,
if any.

A. insider trading of the company’s financial statements in securities during
the year 2022

Tharal are no fransactions for the insider employees of the company in the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange, and this has been confirmed according to the list of trades on the
company's shares issued by the market.

E Tr:-!l.l'f":l:'l‘l_.iul'\."lr'l."\ .'_.11' rl'l-.;" el L:Il; '_I‘l-;' -!_'u_.nu,ﬁn-,-':. q-ll'l!__llq_jlr-l-r_-:.\. ||||.3"||'|F'i.|.|'..lr||||IE'11|

It was confirmed that no (non — acquainted) employee of the company's shares traded

during the year 2022
X
__ Page 18|31 Governance Report2022 |
UM & OAlWAIN OENERAL INVESTMENTS COMPANY FEO Tul <071 & TER19G  widle Foow oetall Gl afladl ug 88 B 3
P Bos BLE Ume A Saewan Fax FBT1 A TRE1070 wutdli ik ,;I|,'|,l||||:l.|“__.|_J
Uriimd Amin EmimiEn L LA e aAAE Y magall Bialnd apaull algdey

Email  gic@emrEies nelas OEPRmITNG MR O0 g L A



QIC"

b ml whcgl slied o sp sl
L A Ok CERERM. PVESTRIENTS

L Competencies and Duties of the Committee
= To determine the permanent acquainted of the Company, including members of
the Board of Directors, ts employees, executive management, persons aware of the
Company's information permanently or temporarily.
« To follow-up and supervise the transactions and property of acguainted,
maintaining records thereaof,
« To prepare a special and comprehensive register for all acquainted, including
persons who may be considered as persons who are temporarily considered
acquainted. who are entitled or have access to the Company's infernal information prior
to publication.

« To maintain prior and subsequent disciosures register of the acquainted, and
follow-up the balances of acquainted on a monthly basis.

+ To notify Securibes and Commodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange of an updated list of acquainted at the beginning of each financial year and
any amendments thereto during the financial year.

* To maintain official declarations of the persons, who are permanently or
temporarily aware of the Company’s internal information.

« To submit periodic reports on the acquainted’ transactions to Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange.

» To notify all acquainted with the required controls and legal responsibility by
delivering them official declarations.

. m'l;;:n follow-up of the responsible department for issuing notifications of prohibition
periods.

D summary of Commitiee’s Activities Report during 2022
* The Committee has reviewed the acquainted 's register and made sure that there
are no transactions made the Company's shares for the members of the Board of
Directors, its employees and all acquainted within the Company in the securitias during
2022, depending on the official statements received from Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange and Kuwait Stock Exchange Such official statements confirm the
statements contained in the records of the Company and the declarations submitted.

=
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o The Committee has raviewad the statements submitted by the members of the
Board of Directors of the Company and the acquainted concerning their trading or non-
trading in the securities of the Company during 2022

 Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, the Securities and Commodities Authority, the
Kuwait Stock Exchange and the Capital Markets Authority have been provided with a
list of the names of the members of the Board of Directors and the acquainted.

+« The Internal Control Department and the Board Secretariat have been informed to
notify the acquainted of the prohibition period, as the Committee made sure that the
Chairman, the members of the Board of Directors and all the acquainted have been
informed about the prohibition of trading in the securities issued by the Company until
the disclosure of the Company's financial statements The prohibition periods were
(before March 15™, June 15", September 15 and December 15™) of 2022,

s The Committee decided to obtain official declarations from the permanent or
temporarily acquainted in order o preserve its confidentiality, and not to misuse,
transfer or cause the transfer thereof directly or indirectly to third parties, assuming the
entire legal responsibility in case of breach of this decision.

» To notify all acquainted persons and inform them of the controls related to them

and the legal responsibility resulting from the breach of confidentiality of information,
as described in clause (5) above.

Eighth: Any other committee or
committees approved by the Board of
Directors

There is no other committee or commitiees.
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Ninth: Internal Control Regulations

A The Board of Directors acknowledges its full responsibility for the Company's
internal control regulations, and its review and effectiveness based on the Article No
(20} of the decision of the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Securities and
Commodities Authority No. (V/R.M) of 2016 on the institutional discipline and the
governance of public shareholding companies’ standards, as this department has
sufficient independence to paerform its duties and it reports directly to the board of directors
and has full independence and has the power to contact all departments of the company
to carry out its tasks.

o The following is the name, qualification and appointment date of the
Department Manager

Name: Ashraf Rady |brahim
Title: Acting Chief Financial Officer (Appointment date: 25/04/2022).
Careers:

» Bachelor of Commerce, Accounting Division, Zagazig University 1988,

* Accountant at El Sewedy - Arab Cables Company in 10" of Ramadan City, Egypt
from 1985 {0 1887

» Accountant for the Egyptian government in the City of Zagazig from 1997 to
11/2004,

» Accountant in the company from 30/12/2004 to date.

« Acting Chief Financial Officer since 25/4/2022

':: Work Fr‘.-l.‘e'.'r.lﬂ.-!'nlﬁﬁ'l of Internal Control

Umm Al Qawain General Investments Company P.8.C has an effective intermnal audit
n_:!apamnant consisting of a professionally qualified manager and an expert. It aims to
implement an accurate system to provide and improve the effectiveness ofthe
performance of the department and internal contral of the Company for continuous

-
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auditing of the operation results, investigation of financial records, evaluation of intermal
control regulations and assist senior management to increase the efficiency of the
Company's operations n detecting the manipulation and monitoring errors in the
Company's financial systemn,

The Company adopts the implementation of international standards of internal control in
order to achieve the reguired objectives efficiently at the lowest economic costs. The
internal control basis intended to ensure the following: -

Sensibility and compatibility of information and data.
Extent of compliance with policies, plans, procedures, regulations, laws and
instructions.

» The extent of protection of the Company's assets and properties.

= The extent of compliance of the activities, processes and programs with the
specific objectives and purposes, and ensure the implementation thereof by the
supervisory authorities as per the specific plans and objectives.

Internal Control Department shall develop the annual control plan in coordination with the
managers of the relevant departiments or the heads of the other divisions of the Company.

The Manager of the Internal Control Department shall submit detailed reports to the Audit
Committes and the Board of Directors on the evaluation of the intemal control regulations,
showing remarks and proposals to increase the effectiveness of the internal control
regulations on a regular basis and when necessary at any time it deems appropriate for
the purposes of this assessment.

Internal Control Activities in 2022:

Internal Control Committee reviewed nature of the works of all departments “within the
powers authorized to it by the Board of Directors”, which expressed its cooperation with
the Committee by facilitating all means to obtain the information. Such departments also
cooperated with the Committee to verify the regulations in order to reflact a clear vision
on the work progress and the Company's commitment to the policy developed by the
Board of Directors. It is noted in this regard that the Company did not face any major

problems during 2022
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D. The number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department 1o the

Board of Directors:
Internal Control released three reports during the year 2022

Tenth: Violations

The company did not record any violations during the year 2022

The Company's disclosures in 2022 were made within the time limit granted by the
Securities and Commaodities Authority and Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange. Accordingly,
the Company did not record any violations for that.

Professional Code of Conduct:

Honasty and ethics of work are the ideals of the Company and everyone is working on
the continuation of its principles as the culture of the Company. All employees are fully
aware of the Company's professional guidelines and codes of conduct adopted by the
Company and to implement thereof. They are responsible for ensuring that all the
Company's businesses are carried out in compliance with these rules.

Eleven: Cash and In-Kind
Contributions

Environmental policy applied by the Company toward the environment and society:
All employees of the Company shall deal with environmental issues professionally. In
order fo reach a society with little environmental impact, the Company implements the
best environmental practices as per the laws and regulations. In addition, all employees
of the Company observe the following rules in order to protect the anvironment, and the
health and safety of members of society:
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Cash and in-kind contributions:

The Company made a cash contribution of AED 100,000 to Al Arabi Sports and Cultural
Club in Umm Al Quwain in 2022

01-2022
02-2022
03-2022

062022

09-2022 -E.Ej_i-
IIEE -
1.180 _-IEI

Twelve: General Information

M Statement of the share's price of Umm Al Qaiwain General Investimeanis
"‘”I dly P 1‘.‘- M AD I_ i 1|"!l I\"'I"'I UNTIes L;I'I' ||_|['||,l' [ || 11 J i'|,r|_'_:::_ |'||g|'|,-_.-i-l': I:?ll i
Iowest price) at the end of each month during the financial vear 2072

Y
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B Statement of the comparative performance of the Company’s shares with

the sector index to which the Company belongs during 204

-'_':_ ‘."\-!:-il.l.' Tl ..r e cdistrioution of I:.|1.-=||.|-|I:_|||_|:-I':-'| DWW ‘-;.l'll.,_l I} I_I"'EII" Jl'l.l

Quwain General Investments Company as on December 21, 20&:

The percentage of shares held %

Individuals Companies

ra

] Statement of the shareholders owning 5% or more of the f'.|-||1;|.':1.1'_, ‘s capiial,
as of 311212022, as per the below table:

Page 25|31 Governance Report 2022

LM &L QAUWUN GEMERAL IVESTMENTS COMPANY P50 Tai 71 6 TEE1LRY Tl Fa gt delell sl il jug Al gl @5l

PO Bon B0 Ui & Os i Fix 071 & TER1GTN a1l i o idfalB1E6

united Arab Enimlas —— AL gl Sisatal ] cltard
Emad ; ofameEniag il ds Qloemiaiennetan gkl 1l



QIC"’

ATITTHT [T, -t 1|
kil AL CAMAR GESMERAL WYEGTMENTYS

Mame

Al Salem Limited Company

percentage of owned
shares in the capital (%)

Total

108,126,700 26,24
FAB Private Bank (Suisse) SA 20,000,000 5.51
Majed Ahmed Omar Salem Al Korbi 20,670,453 560
Mohamed Ahmed Sased Al Qassim| 19,265,439 T B

166,062,592

*The group associated with the Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Salem Abdulla
Salem Al Hosani, who owns 143,068 185 shares, representing 39.41 % (direct and

indirect).
= Statement of shareholders' distribution according to the size of ownarship,
as of 311122022, as per the below fable

roentage of
i Number of Owned i
Sr. Shares ownership i ? %:m owned shares in
o Seme the capital (%)
1 Less than 50,000 5,569 20,783,183

2 Fram 50,000 to 500,000 38,897,000
3 From 500,000 to 5 000,000 60,238,219
4 |} Maore than 5,000,000 13 243,081 468 66,96
Total l E.897 263,000,000 100
|
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F. A statement of the measures taken regarding investor relations controls.

The Investor Relations page aims to enhance communication channels and encourage
the exchange of information in order to enable investors and financial analysts to reach
clear visions according to the highest standards of transparency and reliability and
provide an opportunity to obiain the latest information that confims the extent of
commitment to transparency and the application of institutional discipline standards,
where he is responsible for managing investor relations. / Khalid Mostafa Akeila, Acting
Director of Investor Relations.

Contacts:

Maobile No.: +971502437228

Phone number; +87167681688

Fax: +87167681070

Email: gic@emirates net.ae

The link for the investor relations page on the company's website:
(hittpliwww, gic-uag. aslen/categorylinvestors-relations)

G Subject requires a special decision

Mo special decisions were submitted in the General Assembly during 2022

H Rapportaur of the Board of Directors’ Meetings
Mr. Mustafa Fahmi Akeila has been appointed on 31 May 1986,
Careers and experience:

Bachelor of Commerce - General Accountant 8t  Air conditioning company from April
1976 to May 1980 - Auditing and establishing joint stock companies with Gulf Financial
Advisors from April 1981 to April 1988
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Statement of his duties during the year 2022:

« Informing the members of the Board of Directors of the dates of the meetings and
sending them the meeting invitations and the agenda for them at least one week before
the meeting.

» Remind the members of the board of directors of the dates of the periodic meetings
and pass the new information.

« Writing the minutes of the sessions, preparing the decisions issued by the Board
of Directors, preparing the relevant drafts and letters, editing, printing, auditing,
following up their signature and distributing them duly,

* Prowviding council members with decisions issued by the council.

« Coordination of the meetings of the committees emanating from the Board of
Directors and coordination with the heads of the members of those committees to
prepare their minutas and present their recommendations and decisions to the Council,
*» Providing the competent authorities (Abu Dhabi Securities Market, the Securities
and Commodities Authority, the Stock Exchange and the Capital Markets Authority in

Kuwait} with the meetings of the Board of Directors and the results of the meetings, in
addition to any other disclosures that may affect the company’s shares

¢ Communicate with the competent authorities and responding to any questions or
concerns related to the company.

= Carry cut any tasks assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

Emmil | i@ irabes nal ks

}}Y
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. Significant events encountered by Umm Al Quwain General Investment
Company P.5.C during 2022

The plot of land (file No. 1708) located in Al Raafa area in the Emirate of Umm Al Quwain
has been replaced, with an area of 4 693 968 square feet classified as "services” with a
similar plot of land in Al Raafa area and merge it to the two plots of land | Nos. 1686 and
1774 ) owned by the company with an area of 5 971,348 sguare fest, so that the total
area of the new land is 10,671,317 square feet, provided that the new land is located on
Al Ittihad Street in Al Raafa area in the Emirate of Umm Al Quwain, and the type of its
authorized use is residential / commercial, with a number of floors (ground + 4 floors) in
order fo serve the purposes of the company after its activity been changed from the
cement industry to general investments, and the new property issued by Umm Al Quwain
Municipality was obtained on 24/2/2022 with the number 108, the identification code
2070108, the land type is residential and commercial (G+4), with an area of
10,671,317.01 feet.
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J Percentage of Emiratization at the Company by the end of the years 2020,
2021, and 2022

Emiratization Percentage | Emiratization Percentage | Emiralization Percentage

2020 2021 2022
|
20% 20%
K Innovative and initiatives projects
There are no innovative and initiatives projects carmried out by the company or being
developed during the year 2022
Allah is the Arbiter of Success,
( -
- = __.-g-:--'—LI"-
Chairman of the Head of the Audit Head of the Nomination Head of the Internal
Board Committee and Remuneration Control Department
Commiktee
' b
100 ™
¢ 0! |_ |
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INTRODUCTION

This report, prepared by Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company psc
(the Company), provides an overview of the important sustainability
management initiatives undertaken by the company.

In compliance with the disclosure guidelines set by the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange regarding disclosure related to the environment, society and
governance of listed companies, this report for Umm Al Qaiwain general
Investments in the United Arab Emirates reveals the period from January 1,
2022 until December 31, 2022.

Our report focuses on supporting the UAE vision and international goals to
provide a sustainable business environment and urge the business
community to adopt social sustainability practices, as well as raise standards

of governance.

HIGHLIGHTS

NET PROFIT AED 49.40 MN
TOTAL ASSETS AED 688.81 MN
SHAREHOLDER EQUITY AED 599.74 MN

20% 30%

EMIRATIZATION REPRESENTATION
OF FEMALE
EMPLOYEES

825KG

OF RECYCLED
PAPERS

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT




THE COMPANY

Umm Al Quwain General Investment Company is one of the investment
companies listed on the Abu Dhabi market that seeks to develop its
investment activities.

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company PJSC (previously Umm Al
Quwain Cement Industries Company PJISC) was established by Emiri Decree
No. 2/82 issued on February 11, 1982 and on April 18, 2015 the
Ordinary General Assembly decided to stop the production and sale of
cement and focus exclusively on investment operations and work on
amending the activity, the trade name and the articles of association. On
March 19, 2016, the company’'s general assembly was held and a special
decision was issued to amend the articles of the company's articles of
association to convert it into an investment company in accordance with
Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 regarding commercial companies, provided that
the approval of the competent authorities is obtained in this regard. The
company obtained approvals from the Securities and Commodities Authority
to amend the activity and the trade name to become Umm Al Quwain Public
Investments Company PJSC. It also obtained the commercial license from
the Department of Economic Development - Umm Al Quwain.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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OUR VISION:

We look forward to achieving a distinguished
investment climate by achieving and implementing
sustainability, in line with the vision of the United
Arab Emirates to achieve global leadership in the
field of sustainability, best business practices,
knowledge and entrepreneurship. We seek to be
one of the leading companies in the field of
investments in the United Arab Emirates
through the application of best practices in the
field of sustainability and social responsibility.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

OUR STRATEGY:

Commitment to achieving sustainability in
operational processes by reducing risks and
governance practices through technical and digital
innovation, enhancing the role of responsibility
towards society, preserving the environment
and achieving successful business that benefits
shareholders.

At Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company,
we devote our efforts to continuous improvement
and concern for the interests and aspirations of
our valued shareholders, whether inside or
outside the United Arab Emirates.

OUR VALUES:

We seek to achieve transparency by disclosing
all the terms and conditions related to our
activities through the use of simplified language

on our website and on the website of the Abu
Dhabi Securities Exchange as well as the Kuwait
Stock Exchange. Recognizing that we are
accountable to our shareholders, we place a
strong emphasis on maximizing the long-term
value of our stocks and assets.




ENVIRONMENT AND
SUSTAINABILITY

ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGY:

In educating our staff, the company has sought to understand how
incorporating sustainability into their practices can provide multiple
long-term benefits. It is determined what sustainability means for each area
of the company's investment decisions or services and how
sustainability has an increasingly central role in these decisions.

« Commitment to achieving sustainability in operational processes.
* Ensuring the efficient and sustainable use of natural resources.

e The development of economic activity in the region towards the axis of
natural values.

* Monitoring progress towards achieving environmental objectives through
regular audits and other environmental initiatives.

We have implemented multiple procedures that promote sustainable
practices, such as reducing energy consumption, waste, and water usage. By
implementing these policies, our company was able to recycle 825kg of
paper. This has ultimately led to the reduction of paper waste produced by
the company.

825kg of recycled paper which helps to save trees and reduce carbon
emissions, since recycling paper uses less energy and resources than producing
paper from virgin materials.

06
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Umm Al Quwain General Investments Company is committed to maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance practices in accordance with
the highest standards of integrity and transparency to ensure the protection
of shareholders' rights and attract more investments.

The primary role of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is to protect and
enhance the long-term value of our stakeholders, particularly the shareholders.
The board is responsible for setting the company's general strategy, and it
also supervises the executive management to ensure the adoption of the
highest standards of corporate governance practices within the company.

COMMUNITY

Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment Company strives to be a good corporate
citizen and to give back to the community. In 2022, we have contributed
100,000 AED cash to the Al Arabi Sports and Cultural Club in Umm Al Qaiwain.
We are committed to staying close to the community and understanding its
needs. We recognize that it is our responsibility as a company to help build
strong, vibrant communities where everyone can thrive.

EMIRATIZATION

Emiratization is an important part of the sustainability strategy of any
company operating in the United Arab Emirates. It is a policy that encourages
companies to hire and promote UAE nationals in order to provide benefit for
the company and UAE economy as a whole.

As for our company, the Emiratization rate has increased from 20% in 2021, to
25% in 2022. We are proud to of our contribution with the UAE government
efforts to boost employment of UAE nationals.

07
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Umm Al Quwain General Investments Company, we believe that corporate
social responsibility is an essential pillar, so we aim to make a positive impact
within the community in which we operate. By participating in the sustainable
development process for the commmunity as a whole, by providing greater
added value for the shareholders, the market, the environment, society, and
employees.

In order to implement this policy, we will continue to focus on the following:

- Working to improve the working life of employees by providing them with
training, support and rewards.

« Work to provide our shareholders with all the correct information by
publishing it on the company's website and the websites of the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange and the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

- Create a comfortable work environment for employees to help business

08
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EMPLOYEE WELFARE

HUMAN RESOURCES

In our company, we recognize that our most
valuable asset is our people. We are devoted to
creating a workplace that is safe, healthy, and
supportive for our employees’ well-being. We
strive to create an environment where our
employees can thrive and contribute to the
company’s sustainability goals.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

At Umm Al Qaiwain General Investment company,
we believe that employee wellness is an essential
part of our sustainability efforts. We are commmitted
to providing our employees with the resources
they need to stay healthy and productive in their
work lives.

We recognize the importance of providing our
employees with the tools they need to maintain
their well-being. To this end, we are encouraging
open communication, and bringing diversions of
activities in the office to help reduce stress level
in the workplace.

We are committed to providing a safe working
environment for all of our employees. We have
implemented safety protocols and ensured that
our employees are well-aware of all risks so that
they can report unsafe conditions quickly.

All of our employees are on full-time basis. We
offer multiple incentives to keep them motivated
such as, rewards and bonuses based on employee
performance, health insurance, and home travel
tickets.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

We are dedicated to providing competitive
wages and benefits, as well as opportunities
for professional development and career
advancement. We believe in creating a culture of
respect, diversity, and inclusion in the workplace.
We have implemented policies and procedures
that promote fairness and equity in all aspects of
employment.

By investing in our people, we are ensuring that
our company remains a leader in sustainability
for years to come.

DIVERSITY & EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

The entity of the company consists of employees
who are the innovation component of 70% male
and 30% female, which makes the company a
combination of experiences and capabilities that
contribute to creating an effective dynamic in
the company's activity.

The company is making huge efforts in working
toward gender equality in the workplace. Since
last year, female empowerment has increased by
10%. when gender equality is present, employees
feel respected and valued, which can lead to
increased job satisfaction, motivation, and loyal-
ty. This can result in higher productivity and
better performance. Additionally, equality can
help to create a more diverse workforce that is
better equipped to meet the needs of customers.
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We strive to promote sustainability and
corporate social responsibility initiatives. We
will continue to manage the current business
and apply it in a broader context in response
to an effective social, environmental and
economic environment to achieve improved
operational results while reducing negative
societal impacts and emphasizing positive
societal impacts.
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